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Located on a four-acre plot of land at the intersection of 
the Moorestown-Mt. Laurel Road and Evesboro Road, the Evesham 
Friends Meeting House property contains an 18th century meeting 
house (1760, 1790), the schoolmasters building, two small early 
outbuildings, an unmarked burying ground and numerous trees.

The Evesham Friends Meeting House is a large (85 1 x 40') 
2-1/2 story stone meeting house built in two sections. The eastern 
five bays were built in 1760; and in 1798 the two bay western 
section was added.

The earliest portion has a five bay front with two paneled 
double leaf entry doors on the south facade. The windows are 6/6 
and 12/12 sash with paneled shutters on the ground floor: The 
windows have segmental brick arches on the first floor. At the time 
of construction of the western section (1798) the wall of the east 
wing was raised slightly to provide an even connection of the roof 
of the 1798 addition. When the wall was raised, the second floor 
window levels were also lifted about 12 inches. The stonework of 
the 1760 portion is well coursed on the south wall and roughly 
coursed elsewhere. A one story frame portico projects over the 
center three bays on the south wall and across the entire east gable 
end. At the northeast corner is a small frame outhouse.

A 2-1/2 story two bay section was added to the west gable 
end in 1798 which is approximately half the size of the original 
1760 unit. The stonework, as with the original, is coursed on the 
south wall and random or roughly coursed at the gable end and north 
wall. Windows are all 12/8 sash with paneled shutters on the first 
floor. A frame portico protects the double leaf paneled entryways 
on the west and south facades. A datestone (1798) is placed beneath 
the pent at west gable end.

On the northern facade of the meeting house are lines which 
indicate that a building was attached. The secondary records 
related that this section was built in 1698 and measured 30 x 40 
feet. The date is improbable, but the faint outline of a foundation 
approximately this size can be discerned. This unit was removed in 
1828.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Evesham Friends Meeting House is a fine representative 
example of Quaker architecture. With its exceptionally well pre­ 
served interior and ingenious movable room partitions, the Evesham 
Meeting House is one of the most pristine and intact of the larger 
meeting houses in New Jersey. Built in 1760 r this is the second 
oldest meeting house in Burlington County and is still used for 
Quaker services. In addition to its architectural and religious 
importance, the meeting house and property was the overnight encamp­ 
ment site of the British Army under the command of General Henry 
Clinton on June 19, 1778.

Architecture

Constructed of locally quarried stone, the Evesham Friends 
Meeting House is a splendid expression of 18th century Quaker 
architecture. The exterior is quite simple and reflects a 1760's 
edifice onto which an addition was appended in.1798. It is on the 
interior where the features are exceptional. Virtually all of the 
interior is of the period (save for electrical lighting fixtures and 
a 1877 stove setting in the middle of the floor). Wooden pews, 
stairways, wide board wainscoting, gallery, support columns, window 
moldings and doors are all late 18th century.

Of particular importance are the ingenious vertically sliding 
partitions in the center of the meeting room dividing the large room 
into two separate rooms as necessary. While these paneled sliding 
partitions were typical features of the larger Quaker meeting 
houses, few are still completely intact in the state (the brick 
Crosswicks Friends Meetinghouse still retains this feature). In the 
tradition of Quaker philosophy, the woodwork and detailing is quite 
simple, but it is uncommon to find such a pristine survival in New 
Jersey.

Religion

The Monthly Meeting of Evesham was officially established 
in 1760. Construction of the older portion of the present meeting­ 
house began the same year.
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Description (continued)

Although constructed in two phases, the interior exhibits a 
uniform design featuring the traditional meeting house plan with a 
center sliding partition down the middle aisle for dividing the 
large meeting hall into two separate rooms as necessary. These six 
wood panels slide vertically. There are four rows (two in each 
division) of simple wooden pews with a raised platform in the front 
(north). The building has a gallery on rear and side walls. The 
two stairs to the gallery are in the rear, to the southwest and 
southeast corners. These galleries are supported by round columns. 
The interior of the meeting house is virtually unaltered. Altera­ 
tions are limited to modern lighting fixtures and a parlor stove. 
The stove has a name plate - "Orr, Painter & Co., Reading, PA, 
Woodward Pat'd 1877."

The schoolmasters house is a three bay, 2-1/2 story brick 
dwelling with a two bay frame wing located at the extreme northwest 
corner of the property. The brick section is the original unit. 
Built around 1786 (Evesham Monthly Meeting Minutes. II/VIII/1786) , 
it has common bond brickwork with five courses of stretchers. The 
foundation is stone. The first floor windows are 9/6 sash and the 
second floor windows are 6/6 sash. A belt course divides the two 
floors. The roof is gable. The portico over the door is modern. A 
photograph from about 1920 establishes that the frame wing was 
originally a one story lean-to off the gable end. This unit was 
raised to a full two stories around 1950. In the rear of the house 
is a large modern stone platform.

Two outbuildings stand on the property - an outhouse and a 
shed. The outhouse has modern exterior sheathing and roof, but on 
the interior is a 19th century (perhaps 18th century) toilet stall. 
The shed is hewn braced framing, but also has a modern sheathing and 
roof replacement.

The burying ground is at the east end of the meeting house 
beyond the outbuildings.

Quite a few trees are on the property, but of particular 
note are the huge oak and sassafras trees, both considerably over 
200 years old. The sassafras tree is listed as the largest of its 
species in New Jersey.
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Description (continued)

Two long horse and carriage sheds are shown to the north of 
the meeting house in the 1936 HABS plans, but these no longer exist. 
Between the two sheds a well was indicated and a small square 
structure (also no longer extant) was indicated just to the north 
near the northeast corner of the property.

The property has a slight grade rising to the northwest.
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Significance (continued)

The founding of Evesham as a colonial village began in 1693 
when William Evans, a Quaker minister, and his wife Elizabeth 
Hanke settled on 300 acres in the area owned by his father. Meeting 
records indicate that the first Friends meeting was held in the 
Evans' home in 1694. The first meeting house was built in 1698.

On the 23rd day of the third month, 1759, an official request 
was laid before the Haddonfield Monthly Meeting and considered by 
the Quarterly Meeting (County governing bodies for the Friends) on 
the 21st day of the third month, 1760. The Evesham Friends asked to 
have their local body granted the separate official powers of 
controlling their own monthly meeting rather than continuing under 
the Haddonfield jurisdiction.

In 1798, the building was extended westward by half the ori­ 
ginal length. Impetus for the extension may have been due to the 
schism in the Quaker bodies, as the Orthodox Friends met in the 
older eastern end, while the Hicksite Friends held their meetings in 
the newer western part. A divider of doors hung on weights and 
pulleys was used to separate the two ends, or raised to extend the 
available area when required.

Services are still held in the meeting house although a de­ 
clining congregation and inadequate heating have precluded winter 
meetings.

Military

In evacuating Philadelphia in favor of New York City during the 
American Revolution, some 15,000 British soldiers, under the command 
of General Sir Henry Clinton, marched through the center of New 
Jersey. The troop movement began on June 16, 1778 and the records 
indicate that Clinton's army encamped at Evesham on June 19, 1778. 
Evesham Meeting House was probably the center of this brief military 
campsite. Oral accounts and secondary sources confirm this, but 
Friends minutes make no mention of these war activities (this was 
not unusual in light of the pacifist precept of Quakers).
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Geographical Data

BEGINNING at a point in the center of the intersection of 
the Moorestown-Mt. Laurel and Hainesport-Mt. Laurel (Evesboro) Roads 
(1) North 26°05 I 30" west, 428.80 ft., (2) North 39 0 05'10" west, 
52.46 ft., (3) North 42°20 I 10" east, for a distance of 367.44 ft. to 
a monument, (4) South 27 0 02'30" east, for a distance of 544.43 ft. 
to the center of Hainesport-Mt. Laurel Road, (5) South 52°08' west 
346.21 ft. down the road to the beginning.

This description is not recorded in any one deed as recited 
in the genealogical history. It is a composite of all the deeds 
which included purchases and selling parcels of land. The current 
plot plan was made by Harry Bowman, former Moorestown Township 
Engineer.
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